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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Friends Provident Life and Pensions Limited (the Company) 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Friends Provident
plc Tt operales as part of the UK Life and Pensions segment of the Fniends Provident Group (the Group)

The Company 1s authorised by the Financial Services Authority (FSA) to transact ordmary long-term msurance
business n the United Kingdom No significant change in this actuvity 1s envisaged in the future

As the Company 15 not managed as a standalone entity, but as part of the Group’s UK Life and Pensions segment,
the directors believe that these financial statements should not be viewed in 1solabon from other Group
undertakings Thus, where appropnate, reference has been made to Friends Provident ple’s 2007 Group Annual
Report and Accounts for further information and explanations

A fellow Group undertaking, Friends Provident Management Services Limited (FPMS), provides the Company’s
services and admimstrauion and employs all staff  Accordingly, the Company has no direct employees

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW
Strategic review

The Group announced on 31 January 2008 the outcome of a sigmficant strategic review The proposed strategy
will see the Group focus on core segments of the UK and International life and pensions market and will no longer
seek to build a presence 1n the UK wealth management sector, including Wraps

Within the UK protection market, the Company, through 1ts subsidiaries, aims to maintain s market share and
conunue to enter new segments However, 1t will adopt a more tactical approach to the marketing of savings and
mvestments offering them only when adequate returns are available In the group pensions market and vesting
annuity market, the Company 1ntends to enhance profitability by ceasing to pay imtial commssion on new schemes
and focus on acquinng larger schemes It will adopt a more tactical approach to the marketing of individual
pensions n the UK, offering them only when adequate returns are available  Also 1t will no longer build a
presence 1n the UK wealth management sector, other than by manufactunng and admimstering lhife and pensions
products

The section ‘The change in strategy explamed’ of Friends Provident plc’s 2007 Group Annual Report and
Accounts provides further information regarding the new Group strategy
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Trading performance and outlook

The Company 1s the holding company of Friends Provident Life Assurance Limited (FPLAL) and Friends
Provident Pensions Limited (FPP) No consohdated accounts are prepared for the Company as 1t 1s a 100% owned
subsicdhary of Friends Provident plc  Most UK new business 1s wnitten directly by the compames FPLAL and FPP
The decrease in earnings and fec and commission income that 1s earned by the Company 1s due to new business
now being written directly to these other subsidianes

The Company’s resuils show ‘carned premiums net of rensurance’ have decreased by 11% to £380m (2006
£423m) However, only premiums from insurance contracts are included within the long-term business techmical
account Fee and commission income generated by investment contracts has decreased by 51% to £18m (2006
£37m)

New business premiums on an APE basis (APE represents gross new regular premiums plus 10% of gross new
single premiums) have increased by 8% to £40m (2006 £32m) including both insurance and investment contracts,
mainly through mcreased pension sales

As part of the Annual Review within Friends Provident plc’s 2007 Group Annual Report and Accounts, the
sections of the Operational Review ‘UK Protection’, "UK Pensions’, ‘UK Annuities’ and ‘UK Savings and
Investments’, of which the Company forms a part, outhnes the Group’s view of 1ts strengths and strategies for
operating 1n these markel segments, and ns outlook for these markets The section also reviews performance
against Key Pertormance Indicators (KPIs)

The key strategies for UK Protection, UK Pensions, UK Annumues and UK Savings and Investments are

. UK Protection — to maintain its strong presence n individual protectuion and grow its share of the group
protection market

e UK Pensions - to improve the economics of its UK pensions business by focusing on segments of the market
that provide acceptable financial returns For Group pensions, the strategy 1s to cease to pay inital
commission on new schemes and to focus on acquiring larger schemes written by distnibutors that do not
typically receive imitial commission  For individual pensions the strategy 1s 1o write this business on a
selecuve basis where it can mmprove overall financial returns  The development of thits market will be
monitored carefully

. UK Annuties - to focus on offering competiively priced annwmues, through maintaimng and enhancing
effictency, to customers who have saved a pension with the Group with the objective of ncreasing the
percentage of existing customers who purchase an annuity with us, and also to increase the number of
potential vestings by growing the portfoho of group pensions schemes and individual pensions contracts that
feed the annuity business

. UK Savings and Investments — 10 adopt a tactical approach 10 savings and investment products offering
them only when adequate financial returns are available, improving profitabihity through reducing acquisition
costs and being more selecuve about the terms of the new business written Investment bonds will continue
1o be sold and new products will be devised to attract pension savings and income drawdown prior to annuity
purchase using existing expertise and franchise
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Financial performance (continued)

The ‘loss on ordinary actuivities before tax’ as set out on page 9, ts £101m (2006 profit £509m) The transfer from
the long-term business technical account to the non-technical account 1s £64m (2006 £269m) This amount
includes 1ax movements arising within the long-term funds The transfer for the year results from

e net impact of other changes to actuanal reserving of £10m, including PS06/14 change to the regulatory
reserving rules (see note 2 to the financial statements),

¢  profit released from the in-force business £63m being transferred to shareholders,
shareholders’ share (£11m) of the cost of the bonus, representing 1/9™ of the total bonus allocated to the
With-Profits Fund policyholders,
release of long-term business provision for review of other sales of £14m,
tax credit of £20m,

being offset by

*  new busiess strain on a UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) basis of £11m,

* widening of corporate bond yelds as compared to yields on risk free government bonds causing the
underlying value of assets to move by more than the corresponding movement 1n liabihties, reducing profit
by £28m, and

»  one-off pricing adjustment to unit linked assets of £15m

The non-technical account shows investment related losses before tax of £193m (2006 profit of £125m) largely
resulting from the losses arising in other subsidiary companies in which the Company invests

Shareholders’ funds have decreased to £2,499m (2006 £2,897m) represenung a loss after tax for the year of
£116m (2006 profit £387m) less a dividend payment of £250m (2006 £150m) and step-up tier one nsurance
capital secunues (STICS) interest of £32m (2006 £32m)

Friends Provident plc’s Group Annual Report and Accounts 2007 comaimns the section ‘Financial review -
profitability on the IFRS basis” This secuon includes UK Life and Pension key performance indicators that are
monitored at that level This section has analysed the UK Life and Pensions underlying profit between 1ts ongoing
surplus, return on shareholders funds and principal reserving changes and one-off items  Analysis is also provided
within thus section for new business stramn and in-force surplus by product, on both a cash basis and [FRS basis

Financial strength

Assets and liablines of the With-Profits Fund are calculated on a realisic basis  Policyholder habihines
{including options and guarantees) are valued using a market consisient stochastic model

At 31 December 2007, surplus assets amounted to £274m and the Risk Capital Margin (RCM) was £247m The
Company’s objective 1s to manage the fund so that, over ume, the RCM should be covered by assets within the
Fund Accordingly the excess assets have been reserved for policyholders so that the surplus 1s equal to the RCM
At 31 December 2006, surplus assets amounted 1o £254m and the RCM amounted to £220m leaving a surplus of
£34m to be distributed through a reduction 1n policyholder charges

The Company's With-Profits Fund realisuc balance sheet 1s resilient in the event of falls or nises in investment

markets This 1s due in large measure 1o the actions we have taken to hedge the provisions made to cover the cost
of guarantees and options

3 of 56




FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Financial strength (continued)

The Free Asset Rano (FAR), a common measure of financial strength 1s the ratio of assets less habihites
(ncluding actuarial reserves but before the required regulatory solvency margin) expressed as a percentage of
actuarial reserves  On a FSA regulatory basis (which 13 a different basis 1o the UK GAAP basis under which the
accounts have been prepared), this increased to 22 3% at the end of 2007 (2006 22 2%) and available assets 0
meel capital requiremenis decreased to £3,733m from £3,934m

The quality of the Company’s regulatory capital 1s very high and does not include any impheit items

External agencies regularly perform independent assessments of the financial strength of hife companies and
publish their ratings Moody’s has downgraded the Company’s raung to A2 (strong) from Al (strong) rauing n
Tanuary 2008, following the Group’s strategic review, and its outlook changed from siable 1o negative At the same
tme both Standard and Poor’s and Fitch downgraded their ratings of the Company to A (strong) from A+ (strong)
and their cutlook changed from stable to negative

The negative outlook 15 to be expected. as the raungs agencies will closely monitor the implementation of the
strategy and further consider their views when the Group can demonstrate successful implementatuon of the
strategy

Risks

Members of senior management are responsible for identifying and evaluaung key risks facing their areas of the
business Directors manage risks at both a segmental and individual business level The key operational risks
facing the UK Life and Pensions segment and the responses to these risks that are applicable to the Company are

¢ Changes to the distribution landscape — UK Life and Pensions builds long-term relatonships with
distributors Tt has secured places on many best advice and mulu-tie panels with leading distnibutor firms and
mnovative new enirants It has attracted all types of distnibutors by delivering excellent service, products and
technology It monitors developments in the distribution sector and seeks to position wself 1n an appropnate
way that plays to these strengths

e  Competitors develop more advanced IT selutions and service capahbihty — The UK Life and Pensions
operating platform 15 highly regarded and 1ts structure 1s designed for conunuous development to be
achieved UK Life and Pensions aims to retain 1ts reputation for service and technology and monitors
competitor activity carefully

e  Changes in volume or profitability in key market segments or emergence of new markets — UK Life and
Pensions monitors 11s relative product range and competitive position and analyses its experience of policy
claims and lapses It uses this information to re-price its products or develop new ones, targeting those
markets that 1t sees as most likely to grow and to be profitable

s  Changes or volatility in UK and global economic factors — Changes i interest rates, house prices,
earnings and price mflation and the availability of credit can all affect customers’ disposable income UK
Life and Pensions 1s not able to control the external ecenomic environment but 1t monttors these factors so
that 1t 1s able to adapt 11s approach to the market and expense base to help meet 1ts argets and deliver on
commitments to differemt stakeholders

*  Implementation of the Group’s revised strategy - An experienced team, led by semor management, 1s
implementing the revised strategy Plans are being thoroughly assessed for risk and tested agamnst a range of
economic and investment scenarios to help ensure that the sirategy 1s robust, well founded and capable of
leading the refocused business forward UK Life and Pensions 1s seeking 1o ensure 1ts people are engaged
with and sympathetically led through the implementation process and that key skills and experience are
retained 1n this time of change and uncertainty

The financial risks facing the Company are discussed in note 25 to the financial statements
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

DIVIDEND

An ordinary dividend of £250m (2006 £150m) for the year ended 31 December 2007 was paid on 5 November
2007

DIRECTORS

Jim Smart was appomnted director on | January 2007 James Ward, Kevin Watkins and Brian Harrison were
appointed directors on 20 June 2007 Philip Moore resigned as director and chairman on i3 November 2007
having held office throughout the year to this date Sir Adrian Montague was appointed chairman and director on
19 December 2007 All other directors named on page | held office throughout the year

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The directors who held office at the date of approval ol this report of the directors confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and each director
has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to estabhsh that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

AUDITOR

In accordance with section 487 of the Companmies Act 2006, the Company has dispensed with the obligation to
reappoint 1ts auditors annually and KPMG Audit Ple will therefore continue 1n office

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS - INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The Company maintains insurance cover with respect to directors’ and officers’ liabihties In addition, qualifying
third party indemnity provisions (as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 and section 309B of the
Companies Act 1985) are 1n force for the benefit of directors within the Group and were 1n force for the benefit of

former directors of the Group during 2007 Copies of the indemmity are available for mspection at the company’s
registered office of Friends Provident plc

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

Services and supplies to the Company are made through a fellow Group vndertaking, FPMS, and accordingly, the
Company does nol have any trade creditors
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the report of the directors and the financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
dircctors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with UK Accounung Standards

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state ol affairs of the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial stalements, the directors are
required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
*  make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foliowed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

e preparc the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1l 15 mnappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at dany
tume the financial position of the Company and enable them 1o ensure that 1ts financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them 10
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect traud and other irregularities Under applicable law
the directors are also respensible for preparing a report ot the directors that complies with that law

The directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements

Pixham End ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Dorking
Surrey -~
RH4 1QA @ d/k‘j(/z,,
25 March 2008 R G ELLIS
SECRETARY

Registered Number 4096141
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND
PENSIONS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Fniends Provident Life and Penstons Linted for the year ended 31
December 2007 which compnse the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and the related notes These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting pohicies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibihities of directors and aunditor

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out 1n the statement of directors’
responsibilities on page 6

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether 1in our opmmon the
information given in the report of the director 15 consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you 1if, in our opimion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not
recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the Report of the Directors and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent nusstatements within 1t

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors 1n the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently appbied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanatons which we considered
necessary 1 order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial slatements
are free from material missiatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error  In formung our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentaton of information mn the financial statements

Opimon

In our opinion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of 1ts loss for the year then ended,

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1983, and

¢ the information given 1n the report of the directors 1s consistent with the financial statements

KoM Age Qe

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
London

Registered Auditor

25 March 2008
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

LONG-TERM BUSINESS TECHNICAL ACCOUNT

2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 3 448 507
Qutward remnsurance premiums 4 (68) (84)
380 423
Investment income 5 1,309 1,667
Other technical income, net of reinsurance 6 84 216
Total technical income 1,773 2,306
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid
~ gross amount 1,485 1,515
- retnsurers’ share (188) (198)
1,297 1317
Change 1n the provision for claims
- Zross amount (6) 7
- reinsurers’ share - 1
1,291 1,325
Change in other technical provisions, net of
remsurance
Loeng-term business provision, net of reinsurance
- gross amount 22,23 (616) 913)
- reinsurers’ share 22 8 344
(608) (569)
Technical provision for linked hiabilities, net of
reinsurance
- gross amount 22,23 (13) 26
- reinsurers’ share 22 30 (6)
17 20
Investment contract liabilities, net of reinsurance
- gross amount 22,23 83 1 425
- remsurers’ share 22 82 (886)
165 539
(426) (10}
Net operating expenses 8 186 123
Investment expenses and charges 5 6] 74
Unrealised losses on investments 5 530 459
Other technical charges, net of reinsurance 7 19 13
Tax attributable to the long-term business 9 3 58
Transfer to/(from) the fund for future
appropriations 45 (3)
844 722
Total technical charges 1,709 2,037
Balance on the long-term business technical account 64 269

Note:
All amounts above are in respect of continuing operations

The notes on pages 12 10 56 form an integral part of these financial statements
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

NON-TECHNICAL ACCOUNT

2007 2006
Notes £fm £m

Balance on the long-term business technical account 64 269
Tax credit atributable to balance on long-term business
technical account 9 27 115
Profit before tax from long-term business 91 384
Investment income 5 6] 60
Unrealised gains on tnvestments 5 - 81
Investment expenses and charges 5 an 16)
Unrealised losses on investments 5 (236) -
(Losses)/profit on ordinary activities before tax (101) 509
Tax on (loss)profit on ordinary activities 9 (15) {(122)
{Loss)/Profit for the financial year 21 (116) 387
Attributable to-
Ordnary shareholders (148) 355
Other equaty holders 20 32 32

{116) 387
Notes:

There are no recogmsed gains or losses for 2007 and 2006 other than the loss for the financial year Therefore no
statement of total recogmsed gains and losses 1s presented

All of the amounts above are in respect of continuing operations

There 15 no difference between the results disclosed above and the results on a modified historical cost basis

The notes on pages 12 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements

9 of 56




FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
ASSETS Notes £m im
Intangible assets
Licence 11 - 1
Investments
Land and buildings \ 12 358 428
Investments in Group undertakings and participating
nterests 13 2,745 2,953
Other financial investments 12 14,566 15,837
17,669 19,218
Present value of acquired in-force business 14 34 37
Assets held to cover hinked liabihities 12 4,370 4 060
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Long-term business provision 22 534 542
Claims outstanding 7 7
Technical provisions for linked habihties 22 150 180
Investment contract habilities 22 5,549 5,628
6,240 6,357
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operatons
- Policyholders 10 8
- Intermediaries 4 6
QOther debtors 16 50 82
64 96
Other assets
Cash at bank and 1n hand 12 45
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 133 144
Deferred acquisttion costs 17 62 154
Deferred fees and charges - 5
Other prepayments and accrued income 4 2
199 305
TOTAL ASSETS 28 588 30,119

The notes on pages 12 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
LIABILITIES Notes £m £m
Capatal and reserves
Called up share capital 18,21 654 654
Share premium account 21 721 721
Profit and loss account 21 613 1,011
Other equity 20,21 511 511
2,499 2,897
Fund for future approprations 341 296
Technical provisions
Long-term business provision 22,23 9,933 10,549
Claims outstanding 55 61
9,988 10,610
Technical provisions for linked habilities 22,23 1,130 1,143
Investment contract liabilities 22,23 13,586 14,059
Provisions for other risks and charges 26 285 333
Creditors
Preference shares 19 300 300
Creditors anising out of direct insurance operations 12 11
Creditors ansing out of rewnsurance operations 3 3
Other creditors including taxation and social secunty 27 432 464
747 778
Accruals and deferred income 12 3
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,588 30,119

Approved by the Board on 25 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by

M/‘

SIR ADRIAN MONTAGUE

CHAIRMAN

The notes on pages 12 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements

Il of 56




(a)

(b)

FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with section 255 of, and Schedule 9A (o, the
Companies Act 1985 with the exception set out 1n note 1(n) and comply with the Association of British
Insurers (ABI) Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting for Insurance Business (SORP)
(Revised 2006)

The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
under the histonical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, denvatives and
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss as set out 1n notes 1(n) and ¥{u)

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) | Cash Flow Statements (Revised 1996), the
Company 1s exempt from preparing a cash flow statement on the grounds that 1t 1s a wholly owned
undertaking of a parent which provides a cash flow statement 1 1ts consolhidated financial statements
which are publicly available

The Company 1s exempt under section 228 of the Companies Act 1985 from the obhigation (o prepare
group accounts as the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Friends Provident plc in whose
consohdated accounts the Company 1s included Accordingly, the accounts present information about the
Company as an individual entity and not about 1ts group

All accounting policies have been reviewed for appropriateness in accordance with FRS 18 Accounting
Policies The principal accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the
year except for FRS 29 Financial Instruments Disclosures The adoption of this standard became
applicable to the Company from 1 Januvary 2007 The objective of FRS 29 1s to enable users to
understand the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and provide information on
what the Company manages as capital and how 1ts objectives for managing capital are met There 1s no
impact on the current or prior year’s profit resulting from the adopuon of this standard as 1ts provisions
relate to disclosure

Product classification

(1) Insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts sigmficant insurance nisk from another party (the
policyholder), by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the
mnsured event) adversely affects the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts Insurance risk
1s risk other than financial nsk Financial nisk 1s the nisk of a possible future change 1n one or more
of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or
rates, a credit raung or credit index or other variable Insurance contracts may transfer some
financial nisk

Once a contract has been classified as an 1nsurance contract, 1t remamns an insurance contract for the
remainder of its hfetime, even If the insurance risk reduces significantly during the period As a
general guideline, the Company defines as sigmficant insurance nisk the possibihty of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that 1s more than 5% greater than the benefits payable
if the mmsured event did not occur

(n) Investment contracts
Polhicyhelder contracts not considered 1nsurance contracts are classified as imvestment contracts

Contracts currently classified as investment contracts are either umit-linked or contracts with a
Discretionary Participatton Features (DPF) (mainly umtised with-profits contracts)
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Product classification (continued}

(i) Options and guarantees
Options and guarantees are valued separately unless the option or guarantee iself meets the
defimition of an insurance contract, or 1t 15 a policyholder option to surrender an msurance contract
for a fixed amount

For options and guarantees separated from the host contract, the Company measurcs them on a
market consistent basis and includes the change in value m profit and loss on the same basis as for
its other embedded derivatives

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilinies held 1n foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are expressed in sterling at rates
ruling on that date Income and expenditure denomumnated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
ruling at the date on which the transaction occurs All resulting exchange gains and losses are included
withan that part of profit and loss 1n which the underlying transaction 1s reported

Premums

Premium mecome m respect of single premium business and pensions business not subject to contractual
regular premiums 1s accounted for when the premiums are received For all other classes of business,
premium income 1s accounted for in the year in which 1t falls due Further details relating to the
classification of new business premiums are included 1n note 3(b)

Reinsurance

Amounts due to and from remnsurers are accounted for 1n a manner consistent with the insurance policies
and 1n accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract Premums ceded and claims reimbursed are
presented on a gross basis

Fee and commission income

Insurance and 1nvestment contract policyholders are charged for policy admimstration services,
investment management services and for surrenders Invesiment management services compnse primarily
fees and charges from umt-linked investments

These fees and charges are recognised as revenue 1n the peried 1n which the services are rendered

Front-end fees are charged at the inception of the contract The consideration received 1s deferred as a
liability and recogmsed over the expected term of the contract on a straight-line basis

Regular fees charged to the policyholder periodically (monthly, quarterly or annually) are charged on a
straight-line basis over the period in which the service 1s rendered

Fee and commussion income are included 1n the long-term business techmical account as part of ‘other
technical income’

Investment income

Investment income 1ncludes dividends, interest, rents, gains and losses on the realisation of investments
Such income includes any withholding tax but excludes other taxes such as attributable tax credits

Dividend income from listed and unlisted securities 15 recogmised as income when the night to receive

payment 15 established For lhisted securities this 15 the date the secunity 15 histed as ex-dividend For
unlisted securities this 1s the due date of payment
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment income (continued)

Interest income 15 recognised as income as 1t accrues, taking into account the effective yield of the assel or
an applicable floating rate Interest income ncludes the amortisation of any discount or premium

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying value of the investment determined 1n accordance with the accounting policies applicable
to the investment

Investment income relating to investments, which are directly connected with the carrying on of long-term
business, 1s recorded in the long-term business technical account Other than long-term business,
mvestment income 15 recorded 1n the non-technical account

Unrealised gains and losses on investments

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difterence between the valuation of investments
designated as fair value through the profit and loss, denvauves and land and buildings, at the balance
sheet date and their onginal cost, or 1f they have been previously fair valued, the valuation at the last
balance sheet date The movement 1n unreahised gains and losses recognised 1n the period also includes
the reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting penods 1n respect of
investment disposals in the current period

Unrealised gains and losses relating to investments, which are directly connected with the carrying on of
long-term busmess, are recorded 1n the long-term business technical account Other than long-term
business unrealised gains and losses are recorded in the non-techmical account

Claims and surrenders

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all claims incurred during the year, including claims handling costs
Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications recetved Maturities and annuity
payments are recorded when due Claims and benefits recorded are accrued to the policyholder and
included within insurance and investment contract liabilities

Claims handling costs include 1nternal and external costs incurred 1in connection with the negotiation and
settlement of claims Internal costs include all direct expenses of the claims department and any general
admunistrative costs directly atiributable to the claims function

Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim

Transaction costs

Transaction costs 1n respect of brokers fees, stamp duty fees and other expenses on investments are
charged to profit and loss 1n the period 1in which they are payable

Bonuses

Bonuses charged to the long-term business technical account 1n a given period comprse reversionary
bonuses declared in respect of that period, which are provided within the calculation of the long-term
business provision, and terminal bonuses paid, which are included within claims paid

Taxation

Taxanon 1n the non-technical account and long-term business technical account 1s based on profits and

income for the period as determined o accordance with the relevant tax legislation, together with
adjustments to provisions for prior periods
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Provision 1s made for deferred taxauon liabihines, using the hability method, on all matenial uming
differences, including fair valuation adjustments recogmsed through profit and loss, as the investments are
fair valued Deferred taxation 1s calculated at the rates at which 1t 1s expected that the tax will anse and
discounted to take nto account the likely uming of payments and pattern of expected realisaton of
investments Deferred tax habilities are discounted using gilt yield rates appropriate to the estimated year
1in which the timung differences are expected to reverse Deferred taxation 1s recogmsed through profit
and loss for the period

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed 10 the extent that they are regarded as recoverable

The transfer of the balance on the long-term business technical account to or from the non-technical
account 1s grossed up by attributable tax, using the full rate of corporation tax applicable for the period

Intangible assets

Licences acquired are capitalised in the balance sheet at cost and amortised through profit and loss over
their expected useful economic life Charges for amortisation and any changes for impairment are
recorded 1n ‘other techmical charges’

Investments
Investments are shown 1n the balance sheet as follows
(1) Land and buildings

Land and buildings are valued each year on an open market basis by quahfied Chartered Surveyors
An external valuer values properties at least once every 5 years Those properties which are
occupied by the Group are valued on an existing use basss and with vacant possession

In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounung Practice (SSAP) 19 Investment Properties, no
depreciation 15 provided 1n respect of freehold investment properties or amortisation in respect of
leasehold properties with over 20 years to expire  This 1s a departure from the requirements of the
Compames Act 1985 which requures al} properties to be depreciated However, these properties are
held solely for investment purposes and the directors consider that systematic annual depreciation
would be nappropriate Depreciation or amortisation 1s only one of the factors reflected 1 the
annual valuations of properties, and the amounts which might otherwise have been shown cannot
reasonably be separately idenufied or quanufied The accounting policy adopted 1s therefore
necessary for the financial statements to give a true and fair view

(u) Other financial investments
The Company classifies its financial investments nto the following two categones financial
mvestments at fair value through profit and loss and leans recervable The classification depends on

the purpose for which the investments were acquired or onginated

Purchases and sales of financial investments are recognised on the date the Company commuts to
purchase or sell the investment
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Investments (continued)

(1) Other financial investments {continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

All financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, with the exception of derivatives, are
designated on 1nitial recognition as they are managed individually or together on a fair value
basis Dernvative financial instruments are classified as fair value through profit and loss as they
are held for trading purposes

The fair value on imtial recogmtion being the consideration given, excluding any transaction
costs directly attributable to their acquisiion  Subsequent to imtial recognition, all such financial
investments are measured at fair value Movements 1o fair value are taken to profit and loss in
the period in which they arise

Embedded denvatives are separated from the host contract (including embedded derivatives 1n
insurance contracts), recogmsed as a stand-alone derivative and measured at fair value through
profit and loss, when the following conditions are met

- the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to
the economic charactenstics and the risks of the host contract,

- a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivauve would meet the
defimtion of a derivative, and

- the hybrid instrument 15 not measured at fair value with changes n fair value recogmsed
through profit and loss

Loans receivable
Loans receivable represent ‘Loans secured by mortgages’

Loans receivable are financial mvestments with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted 1n an active market Loans recervable are measured on imitial recogmtion at the fair value
of the consideration given plus incremental costs that are incurred on the acquisition of the
mvestment  Subsequent to the imtial recogmtion, loans receivable are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method

The amortised cost 1s the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
ortginal effective interest rate The amortised cost 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Any resulting
impairment loss 1s recorded 1n profit and loss
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
Fair value of financial investments

Fair values of listed financial instruments are based on quoted id values for assets and offer price for
habilities at the close of business on the balance sheet date

For unlisted financial mnstruments broker or dealer price quotations ot published bid values are obtamned
If prices are not readily available, the fair value is based on a valuation technique

Certain financial 1nvestments, including derivatves, are valued using pricing models that Methods
considered when determimng fair values of unlisted shares and other vanable securines include
discounted cash flow techmiques, net asset valuation or carrying value Valuation methods consider,
among other factors, contractual and market prices, correlation, tme value of money, credit nsk, yield
curve volatlity factors and/or prepayment rales of the underlying positions The use of different pricing
models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values

If the value of equity instruments cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost

For units 1n umt trusts and shares 1n open ended investment companies, fair value 1s calculated using
published bid values

Participation 1n investment pools mainly relates to property investments Property 1s independently valued
1n accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyor’s guidelines on the basis of open market
values as at cach year end

The farr value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions 1s their carrying value The
carrying value 1s the cost of the deposit and accrued 1nterest

Investments in Group undertakings and participating interests

Shares 1n and loans to Group undertakings and participating nterests are held at current value

Present value of acquired in-force business

On acquisiion of a portfolio of nsurance contracts or investment contracts, either directly or through the
acquisttion of a subsidiary undertaking, the net present value of the Company’s mnterest 1n the expected
pre-tax cash flows of the in-force business 1s capitalised 1n the balance sheet as an intangible asset Thus 1s
amortused over the anticipated lives of the related contracts

The carrying value of the asset 15 assessed annually using current assumptions n order to determune
whether any impairment has arisen compared to the amortised acquired value based on assumptions made

at the ime of the acquisition Any amorusation or impawrment charge s recorded in the long-term
business techmeal account within ‘other technical charges’
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other financial assets

Other financial assets pnimarily inclede 1nsurance and other debtors, including amounts due from Group
undertakings and cash at bank

Insurance and other debtors are recogmised when due and are carried at fair value Cash at bank 1s also
reported at fair value al the balance sheet date

Deferred acquisition costs

For both msurance contracts and investment contracts with Discreuonary Participation Features (DPF),
acquisition costs comprise all direct and indirect costs ansing from wniuing the contracts, which are
incurred during a finaneial period Costs are deferred where their recovery has not already been reflected
in the valuauon of policyholder liabihities, but only to the extent they are recoverable out of future
margins The rate of amortisation of deferred acquisihion costs on such contracts 1s proportional to the
future margins emerging i respect of the related policies, over the lifetime of those pohcies

For investment contracts without DPF, deferred acquisition costs comprise all incremental costs that are
directly related to the writing of the contract, which are imcurred during a financial period and are deferred
to the extent that they are recoverable out of future margins Such deferred acquisition costs are amortised
umformly aver the lifeume of the pohcy

Annual imparrment reviews are performed to 1dentify whether there are any circumsiances that might
indicate impairment If such circumstances exist, the carrying values are adjusted to the recoverable
amounts and any resulting impairment losses are charged to profit and loss

Funds for future appropnations (FFA)

The 1nsurance and investment contract habilities allow for discretionary benefit allocations to the extent
that they are allowed within current bonus practices The FFA represents working capital and the value of
future transfers to shareholders from the With-Profits Fund 1n respect of discretionary bonuses for the
conventional with-profits business

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies financial habilities as either financial habilities at fair value through profit and
loss or financial habilities carned at amorused cost

Financial hiabihies at fair value through profit and loss, such as investment contracts, are designated on
mitial recognition when one of the following critenia 1s satisfied

s It eliminates or sigmficantly reduces an accounuing mismatch caused by financial assets and financial
habilites being measured on a different basis

s  The financial hability or group of financial liabihities are managed individually or together on a fair
value basis

A financial hability 1s recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial nstrument A financial hability 1s derecogmsed when and only when the

obligation specified in the contract 1s discharged or cancelled or expires

FRS 27 does not allow the decrease of actuanal habihiues in respect of capital units
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are measured using accounting policies consistent with those previously adopted
under the Modified Statutory Solvency (MSS) basis, as amended following the adoption of the principles
contained 1n FRS 27 Life Assurance, for the Company’s with-profits business

Insurance contract habiliies are disclosed separately from investment contract habihties n the balance
sheet Technical provisions disclosed in the balance sheet for the long-term business, claims outstanding
and linked liabiliues represent amounts only for insurance contracts Correspondingly, the change 1n other
technical provisions in the long-term business technical account for long-term business and linked
habilities, incluchng reinsurance amounts, 1s for imsurance contracts only

The insurance contract liabilities are determined separately for each life fund following an annual
investigation of the long-term funds at 31 December The hahlities are calculated 1n accordance with the
relevant Financial Services Authority (FSA) rules for UK operations The valuations are subject to
adjustments to reflect relevant accounting requirements as set out below

For the convenuonal with-profits business, the habihiues to policyholders are determined 1n accordance
with the Realisuc Balance Sheet (RBS) regulations and 1n accordance with the principles contained in
FRS 27 These liabilities include both declared bonus and constructive obligations for future bonuses not
yet declared (excluding the shareholders’ share of future bonuses) and 1includes the cost of options and
guarantees measured on a market-consistent basis The RBS basis of valuation does not recognise
deferred acquisition costs, but allows for future profits of non-profit and unit-linked business written 1n
the With-Profits Fund to be recogmsed

The calculation of habilities to policyholders for non-profit contracts 1s on a gross premium basis and n
accordance with the MSS basis  These habihues include explicit allowance for future expenses and allow
for lapses, but exclude exphcit allowance for future bonuses

The provision for msurance contract habilites can never be defimitive as to the overall level of habilities
or therr tming and 1s subject to regular reassessment

The Company carries out an annual liability adeguacy test on 11s nsurance habilities less related deferred
acquisiion costs and other related intangible assets to ensure that the carrying amount of its habilities 1s
sufficient 1n the hght of csumated fuwure cash flows Where a shortfall 1s 1dentified, an additional
provision 15 made

Investment contracts

Currently nvestment contracts are either classified as umi-linked or contracts with a Discretionary
Parucipation Feature (DPF) (mainly umtised with-profits contracts)

A umi-linked investment contract 15 valued by calculating the number of units allocated to the
policyholders 1n each of the unit-linked funds mulupled by the umt price of those funds at the balance
sheet date The fund assets and habilities used to determine the unit prices at the balance sheet date are
valued on a basis that 1s consistent with their measurement 1n the balance sheet, adjusted to take account
of the effect on the habilities of discounting for the ime value of future tax on unrealised gains on assets
held in the fund Provision 1s made for renewal commussions at the inception of an investment contracl as
intermediaries are not required to perform any service once the policy 1s incepted

Umitised with-profits investment contracts are measured using RBS principles as amended by FRS 27
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment contracts (continued)

A contract with DPF 1s a contractual night held by a policyholder to receive, as a supplement to
guaranteed minimum payments, additional payments

(1) that are likely to be a sigm{icant portion of the total contractual payments, and
(1) whose amount or tinung 1s contractually at the discretion of the issuer and that are contractually
based on
¢ the performance of a specified pool of contracts or specified type of contract, or
» realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the 1ssuer, or
+ the profit or loss of the Company that 1ssues the contracts

Investment contracts with DPF held within the With-Profits Fund are measured on a basis consistent with
a measurement basis for insurance contracts held within that Fund

Balances representing eligible surplus that has not yet been allocated to shareholders, or pelicyholders
with DPF contracts, are retained as a policyholders’ hiabihty

Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity

The classification of financial instruments between debt and equity 1s based on the principles in FRS 25
rather than the instruments’ legal form or their commercial intent The Company applies these principles
when classifying 1ts financial instruments  In order to be classified as debt, the financial istrument, 1n
situations where the contract will not be settled by the Company’s own shares, must have a contractual
obligation to

(1)  deliver cash or another financ:al asset to another enuty, or
(11} exchange financial assets or financial habilites with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company

For some instruments the contractual obhigation to pay cash or another financial asset 1s dependant on the
occurrence or non-occurrence of some future event If this event 15 out of the control of the Company,
then this usually means that the instrument sull meets its defimtion of debt However, 1f the Company 1s
only required to settle the obligation in the event of hquidation or 1if the hikelihood of the event occurring
{or not occurnng) s so remote that 15 extremely unlikely that the obligation will be triggered then the
Company treats the instruments as equuty, as required by FRS 25 Payments on instruments classified as
equity are not treated as expenses but as an appropnation of profit

Other financial habilities
Other financial habiltties primanly include creditors ansing out of insurance and reinsurance operations

and other obligations due to Group undertakings or third pares These are reported at the estimated
amounts required 1o settle the obligation at the balance sheet date
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CHANGES TO ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES
One off basis change: FSA Policy Statement (PS) 06/14 Prudential changes for insurers

Regulatory reserving rule changes arising from the adoption of the Prudenual Requirements for Insurers
(Amendment) instrument 2006 (2006/62) have been applied to the valuaton of the remaiming Life
Protection Insurance contracts not covered in 2006, namely Income Protection business and other
protection business reinsured on a nisk premium basis PS06/14 permuts negative reserves 1o be
recognised to the extent they offset positive reserves within the same fund, reducing overall lhiabilues

Negauve reserves represent all discounted future cash flows, including the recovery of acquisition costs,
less a margin for prudence As a result, any related Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) will be fully
amortised where negative reserves are recognised in full

The impact of completing the second stage of PS06/14 on profit before tax 1s an increase of £124m,

ansing from a reduction 1n net habihiies to policyholders of £88 4m and a write-down 1n DAC of £76m
through operating expenses
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

2007 2006

£m £m
Gross earned premiums on Insurance contracts and
mnvesiment contract deposits 1.377 1,657
Less investment contract deposits wntten (929) (1,150)
Gross earned premuums per the long-term techmcal
account 448 507

(a) Gross premivms written by type
2007 2006

£m £m
Life
Protection 138 148
Savings and investment 287 320
Pensions
Individual pensions 7 17
Group pensions 9 18
Annuiuies 7 4
Total ife and pensions 448 507
Premiums from non-parucipaung contracts 156 161
Premiums from participating contracts 203 264
Premiums from investment hinked contracts 89 82
Total Iife and pensions 448 507

(h) New business written by type

The new business wnitten for the purpose of this note includes premiums on all types of contracts wniten
by the Company (including gross premiums on investment contracts which have not been included as part
of the "gross premiums written’ 1n the long-term business technical account, under paragraph 162 of the
ABI SORP 12/2005)

Regular premiums Single premiums APE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Life
Protection 8 3 - - 8 3
Savings and investment 1 2 11 20 2 4
Pensions
Individual pensions 1 2 112 131 12 15
Group pensions 15 5 19 41 17 9
Annuities - - 9 7 1 1
Total life and pensions 25 12 151 199 40 32
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION {continued)
(b) New business written by type (continued}

The new Life & Pensions APE represents gross new regular premiums plus 10% of gross new single
premums In classifying new business premiums the following basis of recognition 1s adopted

(1) single new business premiums consist of those contracts under which there 1s no expectation of
continuing premiums being paid at regular intervals,

(u) regular new business premums consist of those contracis under winch there 15 an expectation of
continuing premiums being paid at regular intervals, including repeated or recurrent single premiums
where the level of premiums 1s defined or where a regular pattern 1n the receipt of premiums has
been established,

(1) non-contractual increments under exisung group pensions schemes are classified as new business
premiums,

(1v) 1ransfers between products where open market options are available are included as new business,
and

(v) regular new business premiums are included on an annualised basis

(c) Lafe and pensions gross premums

2007 2006
im £m
Source

United Kingdom 447 501
Rest of the World 1 6
448 507

Destination
Unued Kingdom 428 487
Rest of the World 20 20
448 507

(d) Life and pensions new business
Regular premiums Single premiums
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Source

United Kingdom 24 7 144 187
Rest of the World 1 5 7 12
25 12 151 199

Destination
Umted Kingdom 9 2 132 177
Rest of the World 16 10 19 22
25 12 151 199
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Loss on ordinary activities before tax
2007 2006
£m fm
Source
United Kingdom (100) 500
Rest of the World 1)) 9
(101) 509
Destination
United Kingdom (101) 509
Rest of the World - -
(101) 509
Net assets

The net assets supporting the Rest of the World geographical segment are the same as those supporting

the United Kingdom segment and therefore have not been separated

OUTWARD REINSURANCE PREMIUMS

Outward remsurance premums are net of reinsurance premium rebates, net of a provision for clawbacks,

of £1m (2006 £1m)

The aggregate of all reinsurance balances 1n the long-term business technical account for the vear ended

31 December 2007 was a balance of £ml (2006 £661m credit balance}

INVESTMENT RETURN
Technical account Non-technical account
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Investment income
Income from land and buildings 24 22 - -
Income from Group undertakings 17 224 ! 12
Income from cther investments 800 864 37 32
Gains on the realisaton of investments 468 557 23 16
1,309 1,607 61 60
Unrealised gains on investments - - - 81
Investment expenses and charges
Investment management expenses 39) (34) (3) (2)
Interest to Group undertakings 20 (38) - -
Other interest 3] (2) - -
Preference dividend - - (14) {14}
(61) (74) (a7 {(16)
Unrealised losses on investments (530) (459) (236) -
Total investment return 718 1,134 (192) 125
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

INVESTMENT RETURN (continued)

Included n ‘total investment return’ 1s an amount of £822m (2006 £892m) that represents interest and
dividends on investments classified as ‘fair value through profit and loss’ and an amount of £20m {2006
£274m) 1hat represents realised and unrealised gains/losses on other financial investments classified as
‘fair value through profit and loss’

Included 1n unreahsed losses 15 an amount of £24m (2006 £14m) ansing on investments classified as “fair
value through profit and loss’ that 1s determined using valuation techniques

OTHER TECHNICAL INCOME, NET OF REINSURANCE

Other techmical income 1n the long-term business technical account compnises

2007 2006
£m £m
Friends Provident Pensions Limited (FPP) management charge 31 27
Provision for financial reinsurance 1n respect of Friends Providemt
Reinsurance Services Limited {(FPRe) - (note 26) 35 152
Fee and commission income from service activities 18 37
84 216
OTHER TECHNICAL CHARGES, NET OF REINSURANCE
Other technical charges 1n the long-term business technical account comprise
2007 2006
£m £m
Amortisation of present value of acquired in-force business 3 2
Amortisation of licence 1 2
Recharge from Friends Provident Life Assurance Limited (FPLAL) (1) (2)
Umt management charges payable to FPLAL 16 11
19 13

The recharge from FPLAL shown above relates to amortisation of the licence (see note 11)
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET OPERATING EXPENSES |

A fellow Group undertaking, Friends Provident Management Services Lumited (FPMS) provides the
Company’s services and admimstration and employs all staff

Net operating expenses in the long-term business techmeal account, including those on investment
contracts, comprise

2007 2006

£m £m

Acquisition costs 11 14
Change n deferred acquisition costs (see note 17) 105 23
Administrative expenses 70 86

Net operating expenses 186 123

Total commssions for direct insurance accounted for by the Company during the year amounted to £9m
(2006 £12m)

Auditor’s remuneration

2007 2006
£000 £000
Audit fees — excluding VAT 435 421

Fees paid to the Company’s auditor, KPMG Audit Ple and its associates for services other than the
statutory audit of the Company and other Group undertakings 1s disclosed 1n note 8(b) of the consolidated
accounts of Friends Provident ple
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9 TAXATION
Profit and loss account

United Kingdom and overseas taxation has been charged in profit and loss on assessable profits and
income, on the bases and rates appropriate to the various classes of business

(a) Tax charged to the long-term business techmcal account and non-techmical account comprises:

Techmcal account Non-technical account
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £fm £fm fm
Current taxation
Umited Kingdom corporation tax {30%) 12 - - -
Adjustment 1n respect of prior years (23) (26) - -
(1 (26) - -
Overseas taxation (N 5 - -
Tax credit attributable to balance on the
long-term busmess technical account - - 27 115
Total current taxation (12) 2D 27 115
Deferred taxation
Ongination and reversal of iming
differences 11 79 (12) 7
Effect of discount 4 - - -
Total deferred taxation 15 79 (12) 7
Total taxation 3 58 15 122

(b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%)

The differences are explained below

2007 2006
£m £m
{Loss)/profit on ordmary activities before tax (101) 509
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities multplied by
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (30) 153
Effects of
Ornigination and reversal of uming differences 12 )]
Income not taxable (20) 35
Deductions not allowable 65 -
Tax losses not given value - 4
Current tax charge for the penod 27 115
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TAXATION (continued)
Balance sheet
2007 2006
£m £fm
Deferred taxation
At 1 January 170 34
Charge 1n year (0 86
Effect of discounting 4 -
At 31 December 173 170
Details of the deferred tax asset are given below
2007 2006
£m £m
Fair valuation of investments 146 153
Tax on regulatory changes 9 6
Deferred acquisition costs (including those on
investment contracts) 20 20
Discount on deferred acquisiton costs (including
those on investment contracts) (2) (9)
Discounted provision for deferred taxation 173 170
DIVIDEND
2007 2006
£m £m
2007 dividend of 38p per ordinary share (2006 23p) 250 150
250 150
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2007
£m
Licence
Cost
At 1 January 2007 18
At 31 December 2007 18
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 17
Charge for the year 1
At 31 December 2007 18

Net book value
At 1 January 2007

At 31 December 2007
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The licence relates to an exclusive distnibution agreement secured with Countrywide Assured Group Ple
i August 2002 The agreement gives a 15-year exclusive night to disiribute mortgage related protection

products through Countrywide's 1,126 estate agency branches and 11s 887 licensed consultants

INVESTMENTS
2007 2006
Fair value Cost Fair value Cost
£m £m £m £m
Land and buildings
Qwner occupied
Freehold 44 57 45 57
Long leasehold 4 4 4 4
Other
Freehold 310 134 299 140
Long leasehold - - 80 71
Total land and buildings 358 195 428 272
Other financial investments
Shares and other vanable yield
secunities and OEIC’s 4,625 3,380 5,152 3,714
Debt and other fixed income
securines 9,054 9,008 9,709 9,459
Participation tn investment pools 112 60 136 62
Loans secured by mortgages 2 2 2 2
Deposits with eredit institutions 623 623 647 647
Derivatives 150 162 191 164
Total other financial investments 14,566 13,235 15,837 14,048
Assets held to cover hnked
habilhties 4,370 3,628 4,060 3,250

During the year, all properues have been independently valued by a qualhified valuer, principally DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung, CB Richard Ellis and George Trollope, who are all chartered surveyors The
valuation 1s prepared i accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors appraisal and

valuation standards

In the carrying amounts above, £10,495m (2006 £11,555m) 1s expected to be recovered more than 12

months after the balance sheet date

Included n ‘other financial investments’ and ‘assets held to cover inked hiabilities’ are investments, with
cost of £374m (2006 £278m) and fair value of £469m (2006 £399m), whose year end values have been

determined using valuation techmques and are not based on quoted prices

Included in ‘other financial investments’ and ‘assets held to cover linked hiabilities’ are imvestments
designated as ‘fair value through profit and loss” with a fair value al year end of £18.934m (2006

£19,895m)
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

INVESTMENTS (continued)

Farr value of listed investments included n “other financial investments' shown above comprise

2007 2006

£m £m

Shares and other vanable yield securities 4,347 4,478
Debt securities and other fixed income securiies 9,005 9,690
13,352 14,168

Fair value of Iisted investments included 1n “assets held to cover hinked habihities’ amounted 10 £1,218m
(£2006 £1,500m)

INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS AND PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Shares i Loans to Shares in
Group Group participating Total
undertakings  undertakings interests
£m £m £m fm
Current value
At 1 January 2007 2692 248 13 2,953
Additions 30 12 - 42
Disposals (1) - - (D
Revaluations (250) - 1 (249
At 31 December 2007 2,471 260 14 2,745
Cost
At | January 2007 2,059 265 i2 2336
Addiuons 30 12 - 42
Disposals (1) - - )
At 31 December 2007 2,088 277 12 2,377

Principal Group undertakings and participating interests of the Company at 31 December 2007 are shown
below Except where siated, each of these are direct holdings and incorporated 1n England and Wales

Group undertakings held by the shareholder fund

Friends Provident Pensions Limited 100%
Friends Provident International Limited 100%
Friends Provident International Luxembourg SA** 100%
Friends Provident Life Assurance Limited 100%
Frniends Provident Reinsurance Services Limiied 60%
F&C Commercial Property Trust

Ordinary shares - Indirect holding * 17%
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS AND PARTICIPATING INTERESTS
(continued)

Group undertakings held in the long-term funds

Friends Provident Investment Holdings plc 100%
FP Group Limited 100%
FP Finance Plc 100%
Friends Provident Marketing Limited 100%
Friends Provident Reinsurance Services Limited 40%
London Capinal Heldings Limited
Ordinary shares - Direct holding 65%
- Indirect holding * 35%
Deferred shares - Direct holding 84%
- Indirect holding *° 16%
F&C Commercial Property Trust
Ordinary shares - Direct holding 35%

Group undertakings held in assets held to cover linked hiabilities
AUB Commercial Property Limited 100%

Participating interests held 1n the long-term funds
Tenet Group Limited 21%

* held in subsidiary  ** incorporated 1n Luxembourg

PRESENT VALUE OF ACQUIRED IN-FORCE BUSINESS

fm
Cost
At 1 January 2007 72
At 31 December 2007 72
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 a5
Amortsation durning year 3
At 31 December 2007 38
Net book value
At 1 January 2007 37
At 31 December 2007 34

ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE LONG-TERM FUND

Of the total assets shown on the balance sheet on page 10, £26,058m (2006 £26,887m) 1s attributable (o
the long-term business fund
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OTHER DEBTORS
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Investment income receivable 19 17
Investments sold {or subsequent settlement 3 -
Taxation recoverable 11 54
Amounts due from Group undertakings 9 3
Other debtors 8 8
50 82

All ‘other debtors’ amounts are expected to be recovered within 12 months after the balance sheet date

except for ‘amounts due from Group undertakings’ that have no fixed payment terms

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

Insurance contracts Investment contracts Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 83 96 71 81 154 177
Incurred and deferred in the
year - - 1 2 | 2
Amortisation charge for the
year (77 (13) (28) {12) (105) (25)
Other movements - - 12 - 12 -
At 31 December 6 83 56 71 62 154
Acquisibion expenses that do not meet the crnitena for deterral are expensed directly as incurred
CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL
2007 2006
£m £m
Authorised
1,700m (2006 1,700m) ordinary shares of £1 each 1,700 1,700
Allotted and fully paxd
654m (2006 654m) ordinary shares of £1 each 654 654
PREFERENCE SHARES
2007 2006
£m £fm
300m (2006 300m) 4 8125% non-cumulative
preference shares of £1 each 300 300

Under FRS 25 1t 1s necessary to treat the £300m non-cumulative preference shares as debt. as a
contractual obligation exists to pay the shareholders the preference dividend The preference shares are
perpetual shares and are only redeemabie at the option of the Company on 21 November 2019 or on any
dividend date thereafter
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OTHER EQUITY - STEP-UP TIER ONE INSURANCE CAPITAL SECURITIES (STICS)

£m
At 1 January 2007 511
Interest charged 32
Interest paid (32)
At 31 December 2007 511

On 27 June 2003, the Company 1ssued £495m of STICS, which will bear interest from 30 June 2005 to 30
June 2015 at a rate of 6 302% The STICS have no maturity date but are redeemable in the whole or part
at the option of the Company on 1 July 2015, thereafter on every fifth anmversary of this date

The STICS are perpetual securities and are not redeemable at the option of the holders al any ume For
each coupon period after 1 July 2015, the STICS will bear interest that 15 reset every five years The
STICS are carmed at £511m being £495m principal plus interest due of £16m not yet paid to STICS
holders Interest 1s payable annually in arrears on 30 June of each year

Under FRS 25 1t 1s necessary to treat STICS as equaty as there 1s no requirement to settle the obligation 1n
cash or another financial asset

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS AND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS ON RESERVES

Share Share Profit Other Total
Capital premuum and loss Equity
account  Reserve

(STICS)
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 654 7214 1,011 511 2,897
Loss for the year - - (148) 32 (116
Dividend on equity shares - - (230) - (250)
Interest paid on STICS - - - (32) (32)
At 31 December 2007 654 721 613 311 2,499
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

POLICYHOLDER LIABILITIES

Long-term Techmcal provisions Investment contract
business provision for hnked habilities habilities
£m £fm £m
At 1 January 2007
Gross 10.549 1143 14,059
Reinsurance (542) (180) (5,628)
Net 10,007 963 8,431
Movement during the
year
Gross (616) (13) 473
Reinsurance 8 30 79
Net {608) 17 (394)
At 31 December 2007
Gross 9,933 1130 13,586
Reinsurance (534) (150) (5,549)
Net 9399 980 8,037

Included within ‘investment contract habihties® 15 an amount of £3,390m (2006 £3,097m) relating to
assets held to cover linked hiabilities

TECHNICAL PROVISIONS
Liabilities for insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

The provision for insurance contracts and investment contracts with a discretionary participation feature
(DPF) 15 calculated on the basis of recogmsed actuanal methods with due regard to actuanal principles
and best practice  The methodology takes into account risks and uncertainties of the particular classes of
long-term business written and the results are certified by the professionals undertaking the valuations

Calculations are generally made on an individual policy basis, however where any global provisions are
made these are calculated using statisucal or mathematical methods These results are expected to be
approximately the same as 1f an individual hability was calculated for each long-term contract

For the Company’s conventional with-profits business, including umused with-profits business, the
habilities are determined on a realistic basts and 1n accordance with the principles contamned 1n FRS 27

The main element of the realistic hablities 1s the ‘asset shares’ of with-profits business, representing the
premiums received to date together with the 1nvestment return earned less expenses and charges These
asset shares move with the value of the underlying assets Other policyholder liabihues, including options
and guarantees arising 1n the With-Profits Fund, are then valued on a market-consistent stochastic basis

The main types of guarantees and options within the With-Profits Fund, are guarantees 1n respect of bonus
addiions and guaranteed annuity options The calculation of habilities and management actions that
would be taken 1n certain scenarios 1s 1n accordance with the Company’s Principles and Practices of
Financial Management (PPFM) and set out 1n more detail in note 24

Liabihities to policyholders in respect of non-profit insurance pohcies, primarily protection and anmnty
products, have been valued using a gross premium method

Single premwm group ncome protection contracts have been valued at 90% of the last three years
premuwms plus an allowance for outstanding claims 1n respect of earlier premiums

34 of 56



23

FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TECHNICAL PROYVISIONS (continued)

The principal assumptions underlying the calculation of the provisions are set out below

Valuation interest rates 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
% %

Class of business (all non-profit or unit-linked)

Life fund 31 31
Individual income protection 33 38
Single premium group income protection 38 38
Pension business — other than annuities 39 39
Pension annuities 1n payment 475 456

As explained above, the Company’s conventional with-profits business 1s valued 1n accordance with the
FSA’s realistic capital regulations

For regular premium Life protection products the interest rate used 1n 2007 15 2 6% or 5 6%, depending on
which 15 most onerous

The total cost of regular, interim and final bonuses atirbutable for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
£277m (2006 £217m)

Mortahty and morbidity assumptions
The lhabilities allow for mortality and morbidity sk by making assumptions about the proportion of

policyholders who die or become sick  Allowance for future mortality has been made using the following
percentages of the standard published tables

2007 2006
Term assurances - smoker 126% TM92(5) / 116% TF92(5) 95% TM92(5) / 116% TF92 (5)
Term assurances - non-smoker 58% TM92(5) / 63% TF92(5) 58% TM92 (5} / 74% TF92 (5)
Cntical 1llness CIBT02 @ Same as term assurance
Other hfe assurances 80% AM/AF8R0 ult 80%AM/AF80 ult
Uniused policies 80% AM/AF8( ult 80%AM/AFE0 ult
Pension policies 315% AM/AF80 ult 35%AM/AFE0 ult
Individual income protectron 60% AM/AF80 uit 60%AM/AFS0 ult
Individual pension annuities n
payment RM/FV00 ™ 75% RM/FV92 U2006 “*
Group pension annuities in payment  PCMA/PCFAQQ ™ 95% PM/FA92 U2006 ™

" The percentages of the table used differ by sex and smoker status

W Age-related percentages of the monality tables are used Future improvements 1 mortalty are based on the
following percentages of the average of CMI's Medium Cohort and Leng Cohort

Males - 100% subject to a mumimum of 1 5% per annum
Females - 75% subject to a mummum of 1 25% per annum

bt Plus additional 0 25% per annum and 0 5% per annum for mdividuals and group (males only) respecuvely from
31 December 2003 onwards

Individual 1ncome protection sickness and recovery rates are based on percentages of the CMI 12 (male
and female) published tables Rates differenniate by smoker status, deferred period and occupational
class

Critical 1llness morbidity rates are based on percentages of the published CIBTC2 table The percentages
used vary by sex and smoker status In addition, future deterioration in morbidity 1s allowed for by
applying 1 25% per annum and 1 50% per annum to the critical illness rates, for males and females
respectively
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TECHNICAL PROVISIONS (continued)

Lapse rates for conventional and income protection business are based on recent experience with a
prudent margin

Reviews for pension transfers and opt-ouls have now been substantially completed  An amount of £4 Om
(2006 £5 9m) remains within the long-term business provision in respect of residual associated costs and
contingencies No change to the total costs of the review have been assumed in 2007 or 2006

Included n the carrying amount of insurance contract habiliues, 15 £9,113m (2006 £9,819m) that 15
expected 1o be settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet date

Investment contracts

The prowvision for hinked contracts 1s equal to the value of umts, underlying assets, share index or
reference value The fund habilities at the balance sheet dale are adjusted to take account of the effect of
discounting tor the ume value of future tax on unrealised gains on assets held in the fund  There 15 no
sigmficant difference between carrying values and maturity values of investment contract habihties

Included in the carrying amount of investment contract habthues s £7,115m (2006 £7 650m) that 15
expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balance shect date

WITH-PROFITS BALANCE SHEET

The realistic balance sheet for the Company’s with-profits husiness has been determined 1n accordance
with the RBS regulations prescnibed by the FSA  This balance sheet 1s set out below and shows reahstic
assets of £12,397m (2006 £13 682m), realisuc liabilities (including options and guarantees) of £12,150m
(2006 £13.462m) resulung 1n an excess of reahstuc assets over realistc habihiies of £247m (2006
£220m) Disclosure of the capual positon of the Company 1s contained 1n the report and accounts of the
Company’s ulumate parent undertaking Friends Provident plc

2007 2006

£m £m

Total net assets 14 739 16,087

Less non-profit habihties including share of resilience

capital and long-term insurance capital requirements {2,561) (2,670)
Total regulatory assets 12,178 13,417
Addinonal assets arising on realistic basis 219 265
Total assets 12,397 13,682
Policyholder habilittes — asset shares 10,323 11.365
— financial guarantees (net of charges) 210 101

— options (guaranteed annuities) 628 747

Other hiabiliues 989 1,249
Total habilities 12,150 13,462
Excess of assets over liabilities 247 220

At 31 December 2007, the surplus of realisuc assets over reahstic hablities imtially amounted e £274m
(2006 £254m) with a Risk Capital Margin (RCM) of £247m (2006 £220m), the surplus assets have
subsequently been reduced by £27m wvia a reduction in future guarantee charges leaving the working
capital at £247m fully covering the RCM  Adding back the sharehoiders’ share of future bonuses totalling
£94m (2006 £95m) and deducting adjustments to ebminate double counting of acquired PVIF of £0m
(2006 £19m), the excess in accordance with FRS 27 amounted to £341m {2006 £296m)
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WITH-PROFITS BALANCE SHEET (continued)

The main element of the realistic habilities 1s the asset shares of with-profits business This represents the
premiums received to date together with the investment return earned less expenses and charges This 1s
matnly calculated on an incividual pohicy basis using historic information and 1n line with the Company’s
Principles and Pracuces of Financial Management (PPFM)  Assets and realistic habilities are closely
matched since the realistic habilities move with the value of the underlying assets

Policyholder habihues (including options and guarantees) are then valued using a market-consistent
stochasuc model Included 1n habilites are provisions for specific items such as morigage endowment
reviews and other habihues of the fund Reahstic valuatnons also allow for future protits of non-profit
business written 1n the With-Profits Fund 10 be included In accordance with FRS 27, the value of future
profits of non-profit business has been deducted from policyholder habilities 1n the balance sheet

Options and guarantees are features of life assurance and pensions contracts that confer potenually
valuable benefits to policyholders They are not umique to with-profits funds and can arise n non-
participating funds They can expose an insurance company to two types of risk insurance (such as
mortality/morbidity} and financial (such as market priceshnterest rates) The value of an option or
guarantee comprises two elements the intnnsic value and the time value The ntrinsic value 1s the
amount that would be payable if the option or guarantee was exercised immediately The ume value 1s the
addinonal value that reflects the possibility of the intrinsic value increasing 1n future, before the expiry of
the option or guarantee

Under FSA rules, the Company’s options and guarantees are valued on a market-consistent stochastic
basis and included in policyholder habihues There are two main types of guarantees and options in the
Company’s With-Profits Fund maturity guarantees and guaranteed annuity options Maturity guarantees
are 1n respect of conventional with-profits business and unitised with-profits business and represent the
sum assured and reversionary bonuses declared to date  The cost of these guarantees, net of charges, has
been calculated at £210m (2006 £101m) For certain with-profits pension pohicies 1ssued, there are
options guaranteemng the rates at which annuities can be purchased The cost of these guarantees has been
calculated at £628m (2006 £747m)}

The cost of the with-profits guarantees 1s assessed using a market-consistent stochastic model {using The
Smuth Plus Model as the scenario generator) and 1s calculated using 6,300 simulations  The model has
been calibrated using the gilt nsk-free curve assuming interest rates of between 4 1% and 4 6% pa (2006
between 3 9% and 5 3% pa) and implied volauhities in the market The capital return has been calibrated
and compared to the actual asset portfolio  For equities, the capital return volatility vanes by year with
26% pa (2006 20%pa) assumed 1n year 7, increasing to 26% pa (2006 23%pa) by year 14 and 27% pa
(2006 25% pa) by year 21 Volaulity for property total returns varies by year with 15% assumed 1n year
7 (2006 15% pa), increasing to 17% pa (2006 15% pa) by year 14 and 17% (2006 15%) by year 21

The cost of guarantees also depends on management actions that would be taken under varnous scenartos
For example the future level of the equity-backing ratio (the ratio of funds held 1in equities and property to
total investments) varies 1n each scenaro depending on the rauon of the guarantee cost to the asset share
Similarly, the reversionary bonus rate 1s set each year such that, by maturity, guaranteed benefits are
targeted as a prescribed fraction of the total asset share, leaving the remaimng portion of the asset share to
be paid as terminal bonus The management actions are 1n line with the PPFM and are programmed 1nto
the model
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WITH-PROFITS BALANCE SHEET (continued)

The guarantee cost 1n respect of guaranteed annuity options 15 assessed using a market-consistent
stochastic model and values both the current level of the guaranteed annuity rate benefit (allowing for
future improvements in annuitant mortality) and the time value due to uncertainty 1n future interest rates
The guarantec cost n each scenario 15 the value of the excess annuity benefit provided by the options
relative to an annuity purchased in the open market In estimating the future open market annuity rate, the
model allows for stochastic vanation n interest rates and for future mortahty improvements The
stochastic 1nterest rate assumpton reflects that tmplied by current market interest rate derivative prices
Future annuitant mortality has been derived from the premium basis at which annwties can be purchased
from Friends Provident Pensions Limuted, which allows for future mortality improvements Future
improvements are difficult to assess, as there 1s no industry census

The guaranteed annuity options cost also depends upon other factors such as policy discontinuance and
tax-free cash take up The factors are based on recent experience adjusted to reflect industry benchmarks
and to antteipate trends 1n pohicyholder behaviour

A summary of the key assumptions 1s as follows

Pohcy discontinuances lapse, early reurement and paid-up rates vary by policy type and period and have
been based on recent expenience  Policy lapses for pensions are generally in the range of 1% to 4% pa
(2006 1% to 3% pa) with policy lapses for Iife business 1 the range of 3% to 10% pa (13% pa for
mortgage endowment and with-profit bond policies) (2006 3% 10 9% pa (13% pa for mortgage
endowment policies)) Paid-up rates for pensions are generally 1n the range of 5% to 12% pa (2006 7%
to ! 1% pa) with hfe policies generally in the region of 05% to 2% pa (2006 05% to 2% pa) Early
retirement rates vary by age band and policy type and have been reviewed and amended 1n 2007 based on
recent experience

Tax-free cash option where a guaranteed annuily option ts more valuable than the cash equivalent 1t 15
assumed that 18% to 27% of the benefit 1s taken as tax-free, depending on type of business (2006 18% to
27%) This 1s based on recent expernence

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS

The Company 1s exposed to market risk, credit risk and hiqudity nisk from its use of financial instruments
and 10 insurance nsk through the 1ssuing of insurance contracts This note presents information about the
Company’s exposure to each of the above nisks and the Company’s objectives, pohcies and processes for
measuring and managing rnsk Further quantitative disclosures are inctuded throughout these financial
statements

The board of the Company 15 ulumately responsible for the Company’s system of mternal control and risk
management framework, and for reviewing their effectiveness The board of the Company reports on its
risk management processes 10 the Group Risk Commuittee (GRC) of the parent company, which 1s
responsible for developing, sponsoring and monitoring the risk management activities and processes of
the companies within the Group The Company s board 15 authorised to determine 1ts respective pohicies
for the management of financial and operational nisk, subject to the oversight of the GRC

The nternal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk, as no business can be
successful without taking some risk  They can thus provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
matenial nusstatement or loss

The Life & Pensions Financial Risk and Operational Risk Commuttees (FRC and ORC respectively),
whose members include executine directors and semor managers of the company, oversee the
management of financial and operational nisk respecuvely The commttees have detailed terms of
reference that describe their roles in the idenufication, assessment, management and monitoring of nsk
These commutiees have authority to approve theur respective nisk pohicies
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)

Approved policies are reviewed by the relevant committees, on at least an annual basis, to ensure they
remamn relevant to the changing demands of the business and the regulatory environment Risk
management policies are framed at the highest level to encourage the use of a pragmatic approach to nsk
management and to allow for a suntable degree of flexibility 10 manage risk under changing conditions

The financial and nsurance risk processes are aligned to the business planmng process, with nsk being
idenuified and evaluated o relation to the achievement of business objectives The processes are run
centrally by the Risk function in co-operation with key business units  Risks are recorded by the Risk
function, which co-ordinates quarterly reporting to the FRC  Risks wathin the business change activities
are 1dentified and evaluated by the management of the change programme both in relation to the delivery
of the programme and in terms of the change programme’s effect on the business as a whole

Management is responsible for putting 1n place the ongoing management and monitoring disciplines for
risks and activities under 11s control Through these mechanisms, risks are wdentifted 1n a imely manner,
therr financial tmplications assessed, control procedures re-evaluated and, where appropriate, actions
agreed and implemented to address these nsks

The Group Asset Liability Committee reports to the Investment Committee of Friends Provident ple Tt
comprises some executive directors of the Company, together with semor managers from the lafe and
Pensions and Asset Management businesses, and supervises the application of agreed nsk appetite in
respect of asset hability matching for both shareholder and policyholder funds It also reviews the
investment of, and monitors market, hquidity and credit nsk management 1n relation to, shareholder funds
and makes recommendations to the Investment Commltee in respect of policy on foreign exchange and
interest rate hedging

The Audit and Compliance Commuttee (ACC) of Friends Provident plc oversees how management
monitors complance with the Group’s risk management pohcies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the nsk management framework 1n relauon (o the risks faced by the Group The ACC 15
supported 1n 1ts oversight role by Internal Audit, which undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the ACC

Appropriate authority levels, limits and other processes are confirmed and developed where necessary,
consistent with the risk appetite set by the board

Capital management

The Company’s capital comprises of equity shareholders’ funds , preference shares and STICS

The Company 1s a regulated entity subject to a number of regulatory capntal tests Total available capnal
resources are calculated on a realistic basis for the With-Profits Fund The Company has complied with
all regulatory caprtal requirements throughout the financial year

Capnal and solvency 1s measured using the regulauons preseribed by the Financial Services Authority
(FSA) These regulatory capital tests are based upon required levels of sclvency capital (Capital

Resources Requirement (CRR)} and a senes of prudent assumptions 1n respect of type of business written
by the Company
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Capital management (continued)
A reconcihiation of Equity under UK Generally Accepted Accountng Practice (UK GAAP) attnbwable 1o

equity holders of the Company and the excess of available capital resources to cover long-lerm insurance
business 1s set out below

2007 2006
fm £m
Equity shareholders’ funds per the balance sheet
(UK GAAP basis) 2,499 2,898
Realistic excess capital - -
Realistic value of future transfers out of WPF 335 514
Step-up tier one surance capital securties 300 300
Adjustments to subsichary values {1 050) (1,135)
Remove deferred acquisition costs (46) (143)
Remove deferred front end fees 9 (6)
Remove acquired present value of in force business an (18)
Policy hability differences (8) 26
Take credit for remnsurance 1o FP Re 61 81
Less Long term insurance capital requirement of the
Non Profit Fund (150) (162)
Caputal requirements of subsidiary companies (266) (238)
Excess of available capital resources to cover long-
term insurance business (Per FSA Return, Form 2) 1,667 2,117
Sensitivity Analysis
Year ended 31 December 2007
Notes £m
Excess of available capital resources (o cover long-term nsurance
business {(Per FSA Return, Form 2)
1,667
10% reduction 1in market values of equity and property assets )] {(3)
10% increase 1 market values of equity and property assets ()] 5
1% reducnion 1n nsk-free rates with corresponding change n fixed-
interest asset values (1) 34
1% increase 1n risk-free rates with corresponding change in fixed-
interest asset values (n (33)
Year ended 31 December 2006
Notes fm
Excess of available capital resources to cover long-term insurance
business (Per FSA Return, Form 2) 2,117
10% reduction in market values of equity and property assets §)] (40)
10% increase 1in market values of equity and property assets 8] 39
1% reduction 1n nisk-free rates with corresponding change 1n fixed-
interest assel values (n) 82
1% 1ncrease 1n risk-free rates with corresponding change in fixed-
interest assel values () (68)
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Capital Management {continued)

(1) A fall in equity and property values adversely affects the following
+  exposure to equities n the Shareholder Fund

«  the impact on the value of future charges of movements 1n equity and property values 1n
linked funds

(1) A rise 1n interest rates reduces both the value of fixed 1nterest assets and the value of habiliies The
converse 1s true of a fall 1n interest rates Therefore the net impact 15 sigmficantly less than the
umpact on assets alone

A summary of how each nsk 1s miugated 1s provided below with, where appropriate, quantitative
mmformation on the exposure to that risk

Market nsk

Market nisk 1s the nisk of loss ansing from a change in the values of, or the income from, assets or 1n
interest or exchange rates A risk of loss also arises from changes n the volatility of asset prices, interest
rates, or exchange rates  Market Risk includes the following five elements

Equity Risk — the risk of financial loss anising from a change of or volaulity in equity prices or income
Foreign Exchange Risk - the nisk of financial loss arising from a change of or volaulity 1n exchange
rates

Interest Rate Risk — the risk of financial loss arising from a change of or volaulity in interest rates
Property Risk — the nsk of financial loss ansing from a change of or volatlity 1n real estate values or
mcome

Commodity Risk - the risk of financial loss ansing from a change of or volahhty 1n commodity prices

Market nisk anses on guarantees and options offered on certain of the Company’s products The
Company 1s exposed to guarantees on bonus additions that become more valuable as investment values
fall In addinon, the Company 15 exposed to guaranteed cash and annuity options on certain pension
policies that become more valuable as interest rates fall

The Company manages market risk attaching to assets backing specific pohicyholder liabihities and to
assets held to deliver income and gains for the shareholder Within the unit-linked funds and with profit
funds, the Company manages market risk so as to provide a return in hne with the expectauons of
policyholders The principal objective for shareholder assets 1s 10 manage them so that they meet the
caputal requirements of the Company, and suppor 1ts future strategic and operanonal objectives

Appetite for market nisk vanes for different asset classes and by the nature of the liabilites or funds that
they represent For example, 1n relation to equity risk, appetite varies from taking on the nsk when 1t 15
beneficial to do so for assets backing with profits business in with profits funds to not actively pursuing
the risk 1o for assets backing non-linked, non-profit policies

For assets backing policyholder habilites, market risk 1s managed by matching, where possible, the
duration and profile of assets to the policyholder liabiliues they are backing This helps manage market
nisk to the extent that changes 1n the values of assets are matched by a corresponding movement 1n the
values of habihtes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Market nisk (continued)

Sharcholders earnings are further exposed to market nsk to the extent that the income from policyholder
funds 1s based on the value of financial assets held within those umit-linked funds or the With-Profits
Fund

The following summanses the key actions undertaken by the Company to manage all aspects of market
nsk

The members of the Investment Commutice of Friends Provident Plc oversee investment policy and
strategy for all the Life and Pensions compames, which 1s actioned primarily through the use of
investment fund mandates Day-to-day mmplementation of mvesiment policy and strategy 1s managed
predominantly by F&C Asset Management ple (F&C) in line with these approved mandates subject to
robust monitoring

Mandates are set for each relevant fund within the Company and 1ts insurance subsidiaries taking account
of the relevam factors outlined above Unit-hinked funds are managed in line with their underlying
objectives as set out 10 policyholder contracts  The mandates set hmits on the level of market nsk
permutted using some or all of the following mechanisms

»  defined performance benchmarks,

. a maximum proportion of the tund that can be held in equities and, tor the With-Profits Fund, a
mimmum level,

e restrictions on the size of compames within which equity investment can be held (eg potenually
restricting UK equity to FTSE 100 stocks)

. defined asset allocations between UK and overseas equity exposure in specific regions,

*  restricuons on the vanation of the duration of the portfolio of bonds from the benchmark duration

Equity dertvatives may be held (o facilitate efficient portfolio management or 1o reduce investment risk
(without disproportionately increasing other types of nsk), and appropnate approval must be obtained for
their use  Currency futures and other denvatives may be held to manage currency rnisk but only 1f
permitted by individual fund mandates

In addition to the mandates, the Company undertakes a programme of asset/hability management For
example 1n order to manage the impact of interest changes on profil, corporate bonds and gilts are held 10
match the duration of annuity and permanent health insurance pohcies held This provides matching of
cash flows and valuation movements and 1s supplemented by the use of interest rate swaps to improve
asset/habihity matching as necessary

In order to manage the exposure arising frem guarantees and options, the Company has purchased a
number of derivatves, including interest rate swaps, equity put options and futures, 1o manage exposures
to changes n interest rates or falls 1n equity prices Hedge accounting has not been applied to these
derivatives, as movements 1n the fair value of these instruments will be offset by the movement n the
valuation of the liability  As noted, the majonity of these guarantees arise 1n the With-Profits Fund and so
any net valuation movement will be reflected in the FFA rather than within shareholders’ funds

The following provides additonal information on the exposure to equity and property nsk, foreign
exchange risk and nterest rate nisk

(1)  Equty and property risk

Equity and property nsk as defined above, are accepted 1n accordance with agreed risk appetite 1n
order to achieve the desired level of return from policyholder assets For with-profits and unn-
linked pohcies, the policyholders bear the majonty of the investment nsk and any change n asset
values 1s matched by a broadly equivalent change in the hability Charges which are expressed as a
percentage of fund values are also impacted by movements in equity and property prices Appetite
for equity nisk exposure for shareholder funds has reduced Shareholder tactical equities have been
effectively hedged out by selling FTSE100 equities
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)

{a) Market risk (continued)

(1

(1}

Equity and property risk (continued)

The management of the Company’s equity investments 1s largely undertaken on behall of the
Company by F&C Asset Management plc (F&C) In its decision-making on equity investments,
F&C will assess the extent of equity nisk required or allowed by the fund as set out 1n the fund
objectives and relauve to defined performance benchmarks The methodology followed by F&C to
manage equity sk within each fund 1s an integral part of the asset management approach adopted

Foreign exchange risk

The Company 15 exposed to foreign exchange nisk through its investment 1n foreign operauons,
investment n financial instruments denominated 1n currencies other than its functional currency
(pounds sterling) and revenues receivable i foreign currencies Consequenily the Company 18
exposed to the nisk that the exchange rate of its measurement currency relative to other currencies
may change n a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of the Company’s financial assets
and habihties This nsk 1s accepted, in accordance with the agreed nsk appeute, as being
consequential upon the Company following 1its agreed investment strategy

Exposure to foreign exchange risk through direct investment 1n overseas equities and debt securities
1s mimimal due to resirictions through himits placed by investment mandates set by management

For umt-linked contracts, currency nisk 1s borne by the policyholder  As noted above, the
shareholders are subject to currency nisk only to the extent that income from policyholder funds 1s
based on the value of the financial assets held in those funds The liabihty for non-linked insurance
contracts in currencies other than sterling 1s immatenal

(1) Interest rate risk

The Company 1s exposed to fair value interest rate risk where changes to interest rates result 1n
changes to fair values rather than cash flows, for example fixed interest rate loans and assets and
derivatives that convert floating rate interest payments to fixed rates Conversely, floaung rate loans
and denvatives that convert fixed interest rates to floating rales expose the Company to cash flow
nterest rate risk

Again, interest rate risk 1s accepted, 1n accordance with agreed nisk appetite, as a consequence of the
Company following its agreed investment strategy

Day to day investment decistons around the management of wnterest rate risk and 1ts sympact on the
value of the Company's investments are largely undertaken on behalfl of the Company by F&C,
within the boundanes set by fund mandates In its decision making on gilt and corporate bond
investments, F&C will assess the extent of 1nterest rate risk required or allowed by the fund as set
out 1n the fund objectives and relative to defined performance benchmarks The methodology
followed by F&C 10 manage interest rate risk within each specific fund 1s an integral part of the asset
management approach adopted

The Company may also be exposed to interest rate risk on its strategic mvestments, or any debt
1ssuance  As part of any proposal for strategic investment or debt capital raising, the inierest rate
nisk to which the Company 1s exposed will be given careful consideration as one of the factors
impacting on the final recommendation  Any proposed non F&C managed investments or debt
raising with sigmificant nterest rate risk 1s reviewed by the nisk funcuon  Ulumate approval for any
strategic investments or debt raising resis with Fiends Provident plc Board

43 of 56




25,

(b)

FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Policy cash flow risk

Policy cash flow nisk consists of the following four main areas

Insurance risks

e  mortality nsk — nisk of loss arising due to policyholder deaths experience being different from
expectations, or for annuities, nisk of annuitants living longer than expected (called annuity longevity
nsk),

s  morbidity nsk — nisk of loss ansing due to policyholder health experience being different from
expectations

Other nisks

e  policyholder decision nsk — nsk of loss ansing from experience of actual policyholder behaviour
(e g lapses, option take-up) being ditferent from expectations
*  expense risk — nsk of loss due o expense experience being different from expectauons

The Company actively pursucs mortabty nsk and morbidity nisk in those areas where 1t beheves 1t has a
competitive advantage 1n managing these risks 1o generate shareholder value (without compromusing the
interests of policyholders and the need to treat customers fairly) Policyholder decision nisk and expense
risk are taken on when 1t 1s deemed financially beneficial for the Company to do so, or where the taking of
these risks 1s in support of the Company’s strategic objectives

Underpinmng the Company’s management of policy cash flow risk 1s

« adherence to an approved underwriting policy that takes into account the level of risk that the
Company 1s prepared 1o accept,

e  controls around the development of products and their pricing and

e regular analysis of actual mortahity, morbidity and lapse expenience which feeds into the
development of products and policies

Most policies are written in the UK and so results are sensitive 1o changes mn the UK nsurance market and
tax regime  Otherwise the Company has a diverse range of policyholders and products on 1ts books
Overscas Life Assurance Business (OLAB) 1s the only overseas business

While significant cash flows often occur at the matunity date there are other cash flows which occur
throughout the term of the contracts including income from investments, premiums, annuity payments,
death and sickness payments, expenses and comimssion

Note 23 descrnibes the main nsurance contracts wrtten by the Company and the basis of setting
assumptions 1n measuring insurance liabihties, which takes into account the rnisks above The following
sections describe how policyholder decision risk and expense risk are managed and provide an indication
of the sensitivity of reported profit (o the nsk

(1) Policyholder decision rnsk

Persistency experience varies over tme as well as from one type of contract to another  Factors that
will cause lapse rates to vary over time include changes in investment performance of the assets
underlying the coniract where appropriate regulatory changes that make alternative products more
attractive, customer perceptions of the insurance industry m general and the UK Life and Pensions
division 1n particular, and the general economic environment

The immediate 1mpact on profit of a change n lapse rates 1s relatively small An increase 1n lapse
rates will normally result 1n a small reduction 1n profit
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
(1) Policyholder decision risk (continued)

The cost of guaranteed annuity options 15 dependent on decisions made by policyholders such as
policy discontinuance and tax-free cash take-up These assumptions are set by reference to recent
experience

(1) Expense risk

The whole of the impact of changes 1n expense levels 1s borne by shareholders with the following
exceptions In 2010 the charges made to the Wuth-Profits Fund for managing policies will be
reviewed 1o reflect market rates at the tme  Pre-demutualisaton with-profits policyholders will bear
the impact of any resulting changes to charges

Contractual terms for umt-linked and umtised with-profits products include provision for mncreases
in charges Certain expenses (such as fees/comimussions) are fixed at the time a contract 1s written

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk of loss due to the default of a company, individual or country, or a change n
investors’ risk appetite Credit risk includes the following seven elements

Investment credit risk — financial loss ansing from a change in the value of an investment due 10 a rating
downgrade, default, or widening of credit spreads

Denvative counterparty risk — financial loss ansing from a derivative counterparty’s default, or the
detenoration of the denivative counterparty’s financial position

Reinsurance counterparty nsk — financial loss arising from a reinsurer’s default, or the deterioration of the
remnsurer’s financial position

Deposit risk - financial loss arising from a deposit institution’s default, or the deterioration of the deposit
institution’s financial position

Loan risk — financial loss arising from a debtor’s inability to repay all, or part, of its loan obligations to
the Company or the deteriorauon of the debtor’s financial position

Country nsk - financial loss ansing from the most economic agents in a sovereign foreign country,
including 1ts government, being unable or unwilling to fulfil their international obligations due to a
shortage of foreign exchange or another common reason such as currency inconvertibility

Settlement nisk — financial loss ansing from the failure or substantial delay of an expected settlement 1n a
transfer system (o take place, due to the party other than the Company defaulting/not delivering on ats
seltlement obligations

The Company will take on investment credit nisk and loan risk when 1t 1s decmed financially beneficial to
do so n supporl of the Company’s strategic objecuves The Company 1s averse 1o most other types of
credit nisk, in parucular that related to the default of denivauve counterparties, reinsurers and deposit
takers

The Company 1s exposed to investment credit nisk on s investment portfoho, primartly from investments
in corporate bonds Creditworthiness assessment for new and existing investments 1s largely undertaken
on behalf of the Company by F&C 1In thewr decision making, F&C will assess the extent of investment
credun nisk required or allowed by each fund as set out in the fund mandates and relative to defined
performance benchmarks
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued}
Credit risk (continued)

The global ‘credit crunch’ has had a mimmal impact as the Company has very hitle exposure (o the higher
risk end of the market Exposure to directly held asset-backed securities 15 £1,181m, all of which are at
investment grade Exposure to US sub-prime mortgage backed secunties within the Group’s investment
portfolio 1s immaterial

Denivauves purchased over the counter expose the Company to substantial credit risk unless this nisk 1s
appropnately managed The Asset Liability Management function is responsible for recommending
derivative strategies (o the board, and putting into place the appropriate internal management processes
(including independent valuation and payment verification procedures) As part of the analysis of any
proposed denvative contracts, the credit risk arising will be given due consideration as one of the factors
impacting on the final recommendauon The Company will endeavour only to transact over-the-counter
derivatives with highly rated counterparties as it has a risk adverse appetite for this risk

The Company 1s exposed to reinsurance counterparty risk of three different types

e as aresult of debts ansing from claims made by the Company but not yet paid by the rensurer,

¢ from remnsurance prermum payments made to the reinsorer in advance and

e as a result of reserves held by the remsurer which would have to be met by the Company 1n the event
of default

In addition there 15 potential for the Company’s credit nish exposure to increase sigmificantly under
adverse insurance risk events eg 1f the Company recerved a large number of claims for which it needed to
recover amounts from 1is reinsurers  In order to mitigate remsurance counterparty risk, the Company will
give due consideration to the credit quality of a remnsurer before incepting a reinsurance treaty To
facilitate this process, a list of acceptable rewnsurers 1s maintained within Life & Pensions Finance

The Company 1s exposed to credut risk on the balances deposited with banks 1n the form of cash
certificates of deposit and money market instruments  Money market instruments 1ssued by parties other
than banks such as commercial paper are also covered under this heading  Given the high credit quality
of the deposit institutions and the shori-dated nature of these credit risk exposures, the prumary rnsk to the
Company under this heading 1s concentrauon risk

The Company 1s exposed to loan risk in several different areas, the most material of which are

loans to IFAs as part of strategic investments

stocklending arrangements,

other strategic loans,

loans to appointed representatives,

loans to brokers,

agency debt (including debt anising as a result of clawback of commssion)
policyholder debx,

rental income due

In general these quantitative credit exposures are relatively low but they can bear relatively high
hikelihoods of default
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
The Company 1s exposed to country risk in a number of key areas, the most sigmficant of which are

¢ bonds 1ssued by foreign governments 1n non-domestic currency,
» the mability of foreign entities to meet their obligations to the Company due to a shortage of foreign
exchange

The management of country risk on the creditworthiness of our investments 1s largely undertaken on
behalf of the Company by F&C

Setllement nsk 1s a form of credit nsk that anses at the settlement of a transaction, as a result of one party
1o the transaction (for example, the other counterparty, an exchange, or a bank) failing to perform 1s
obligations to the Company The Company 1s exposed to settlement risk 1n the following key areas

e bank transfers, including foreign exchange transactions,
the purchase or sale of investments,
the purchase or sale of property,

» the purchase or sale of exchange-traded derivatives or the transfer of periodic payments under these
contracts,

¢ the purchase or sale of over-the-counter derivatives or the transfer of periodic payments under these
contracts,

s the seitlement of derivative contracts

Settlement rnisk on assets that form pan of F&C funds 1s managed as an integral part of the asset
management approach adopted

To mitgate credit risk

+ Investment mandates for many funds will have a prescribed minimum credit rating of bonds that may
be held Investing 1n a diverse portfoho reduces the impact from individual compames defaulting

+ Counterparty himits are set for investments, cash deposits, foreign exchange trade exposure and stock
lending
All derivative transactions are covered by collateral

* The Company regularly reviews the financial security of its reinsurers

The counterparty and individual ssuer credit rating limits, and hence exposure to credit nsk, by individual
regulated entity are as follows

Credit rating Limit
AAA £1,000m
AA £750m
A £600m
BBB £100m
Below £20m

The exposure to individual counterparties 1s limited to specific percentages of total non-hnked assets n
the long term fund, based on regulatory categonsanion of counterpartics These are typically less than 4%
of non-linked assets

Concentratons of credit nsk might exist where the Company has significant exposure 0 a group of

counterparties with simular economic characteristics that would cause ther ability to meet contractual
obligations 10 be similarly affected by changes in economic and other conditions
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Credit risk (continued)

The amount disclosed 1n the balance sheet 1n respect of financial assets represents the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk

An indication of the Company s exposure Lo credit risk 1s the quality of the investments and counterparties
with which 1t transacts The Company 1s most exposed to credit nisk on debt and other fixed 1ncome
securities, derivatives, deposits with credit institutions, reinsurance arrangements and cash at bank Debt
and other fixed income securities mainly comprise government bonds and corporate bonds  Given the
nature of the Company’s invesiments in government bonds the credit nsk associated with these 1s
considered small and the Company therefore focuses on momitoring the quality of us corporate bonds

The following table gives an indication of the level of creditworthiness of those categories of assets which
are most exposed to credit risk using principally ratings prescnibed by Standard & Poor’s and Mocedy s
Assets held within unit-hinked funds have been excluded from the table below as the credit risk on these
assets 1s borne by the policyholders rather than the shareholders Government bonds have also been
excluded

31 December 2007

AAA AA A BBB BB B Not Total
rated
£m £m £fm £m fm fm £m £m
Debt & other fixed
interest securities 1,807 1,158 1,492 348 22 7 100 4,934
Derivauves - 150 - - - - - 150
Reinsurance claims - 7 - - - - - 7
Deposits with credit
mstitutions 279 145 189 - - - 10 623
Cash at bank and 1in
hand - 12 - - - - - 12
31 December 2006
AAA AA A BEB BB B Not Total
rated
£m £m £m fm fm £m £m £m
Debt & other fixed
interast securities 1,935 1,144 1,590 511 7 5 165 5,357
Derivatives - 191 - - - - - 191
Reinsurance claims - 7 - - - - - 7
Deposits with credit
institutions 127 348 172 - - - - 647
Cash at bank and 1n
hand - 45 - - - - - 45

For over-the-counter derivative transactions undertaken by the Company, collateral 1s received trom the
counterparty 1f the contract 1s in-the-money (1 15 an asset of the Company) Ths collateral can be sold or
re-pledged by the Company and 1s repayable 1f the contract terminates or the contract’s fair value falls
Contractual agreements between the Company and each counterparty exist to protect the interesis of each
party, taking into consideration minimum threshold, asset class of collateral pledged and the frequency of
valuation

At 31 December 2007 the fair value of such collateral held was £143m (2006 £181m) No collateral
received from the counterparty has been sold or re-pledged
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Credit nsk (continued)

The following table shows the amount of ‘debtors’ and ‘prepayments and accrued income (excluding
‘deferred acquisition costs’ (DAC) *deferred fees and charges’ (DFF)) that were not past due, past due but
not impaired and umpaired at the end of the year

As at 31 December 2007 (Amounts held in unit-linked funds have been excluded from the table)

Debtors and prepayments and accrued income
(excluding DAC and DFF)

Neither past due nor impaired 89 8%
Financial Assets that are past due:
0-3 months past due 8 0%
3-6 months past due 01%
6-12 months past due 02%
More than 12 months past due 1 0%
Provisions for impairment 0 9%
Total (£m) 201

As at 31 December 2006 (Amounts held 1n umt-linked funds have been excluded from the table)

Debtors and prepayments and acerued income

(excluding DAC and DFF)

Neither past due nor impaired 94 1%
Financial Assets that are past due:

0-3 months past due 4 7%

3-6 months past due 07%

6-12 months past due 02%

More than 12 months past due 01%
Provisions for impairment 02%
Total (£m) 242

Liquadity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nisk that an enuty, although solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources
avatlable to 1t tn order to meet 1ts obligations when they fall due, or can secure themn only at excessive
cost

The Company faces two key types of hquidity nisk shareholder iquidity nisk (hquidity withun funds
managed for the benefit of shareholders, including shareholders™ interests in long-term funds) and
policyholder hquidity risk (liquidity within funds managed for the benefit of policyholders)

Longer-term shareholder hquidity risk 1s taken on when 1t 15 deemed financially beneficial for the
Company to de so, or where the taking of tms hquidity risk 1s 1 support of strategic objecuves  Short-
term shareholder iquidity risk 1s avoided due to the need to satsfy dividend expectations whilst having a
limited umeframe to raise capital Policyholder liquidity risk 1s not accepted, over either a short or longer-
term timeframe, 1n all but the most extreme scenaros
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued}
Ligudity risk (continued)
The Company 1s exposed 1o shareholder liguidity risk 1n a number of key areas For example

the ability 1o support the hiquidity requirements arising from new business.

the capacity to maintain dividend payments/loan repayments and interest etc,

the ability to cope with the Liquidity implications of strategic imtiatives such as merger and
acquisttion activity,

the capacuy 1o provide financial support across the Group,

the ability to fund 11s day-1o-day cash flow requirements

The overall objective of sharcholder hquidity risk management 1s to ensure that there 1s sufficient liqgumdity
over short (up 10 one year) and medium time horizons to meet the needs of the business This includes
hiquidity Lo cover, amongst other things, new business costs. servicing debt, paying dividends to the parent
company as well as working capnal to fund day-to-day cash flow requirements

For policyholder funds, hquidity risk anses from a number of potential areas, including

a short-term mis-match between assets and habihities,

having to realise assets (o meel habilities during stressed market conditions

ivestments 1 1lliquid assets such as property and private placement debt,

tugher than expected level of lapses/surrenders caused by economic shock adverse reputational 1ssues
or other events,

+ higher than expecled payments of claims on insurance contracts

Exposure to policyholder hiqudity risk can be spht between non-linked and linked funds As a general
rule, the Company 1s more likely to be significantly impacted by policyhelder liqmdity nisk on non-linked
funds, as opposed to linked funds where poliecyholder henefits are expressed directly as umits held i1n an
underlying fund

The overall objecuve of policyholder hquidity risk management 1s to ensure that sufficient hiqund funds
are available to meel cash flow requirements under all but the most extreme scenarios

Lagudity rnisk 15 managed in the following way

¢ Forecasts are prepared regularly to predict required hquidity levels over both the short and medum
lerm

s Commutted third party funding facilities are held to enable cash to be raised 1n a relatively short time-
span

» Credit nisk of cash deposits 1s managed by applying counterparty lmits and imposing restrictions over
the credit ratings of third parties with whom cash 1s deposited

® Assets of a suitable maturity and marketability are held to meet policyholder liabihinies as they fall due

» Limuts are set on the level of investment in securities that are not readily realisable These are typically
restricted to 5% of non-linked assets
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES FOR MITIGATING RISKS (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table indicates the undiscounted expected contractual cashflows in respect of financial and
msurance liabiliies Where centracts have a surrender value (1e the policy 1s theoretically payable on

demand) the current surrender value 1s shown n the within one year or payable on demand column

Year ended 31 December 2007

Contractual undiscounted cash flows: Within 1
year or
Carrying  payable on More than
value demand  1-5 years 5 years
£m £m £m £m
Techmical Provisions 9,053 7,635 643 2,816
Investment contract habihties 13,586 14,055 - -
Creditors ansing out of direct insurance
operations 12 12 - -
Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operanons 3 3 - -
Other creditors 43 43 - -
Accruals and deferred income 12 4 8 -

All investment and insurance coatract umit linked habilines are payable on demand and have therefore
been included ‘within 1 year or payable on demand’

Amounts expected to be settled from the fund for future appropriation are excluded from the analysis
above as there 1s no contractual obligation (o setile the hability Of the carrying amount on the balance
sheet 1n respect of the FFA, £302m {2006 £246m) 1s expected to be settled more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date

‘Amounts due to Group undertakings’ have not been included 1n the analysis as they do not have any
fixed repayment terms

Year ended 31 December 2006

Contractual undiscounted cash flows: Within 1
year or
Carrying payable on More than
value demand 1-5 years 5 years
£fm £m im £m
Techmcal Provisions 10,610 8,296 742 3,405
Investment contract liabihnes 14,059 14,273 - -
Creditors ansing out of direct insurance
operations 11 11 -
Creditors ansing out of reinsurance
operations 3 3 - -
Other creditors 44 44 - -
Accruals and deferred income 3 3 - -
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PROVISIONS FOR OTHER RISKS AND CHARGES

£m
Vacant properties
At 1 January 2007 4
Utilised in year (1)
At 31 December 2007 3
Review of mortgage endowment complaints
At 1 January 2007 20
Charge n year (2)
Utlised in year an
At 31 December 2007 7
Review of other sales
At 1 January 2007 3
Charge 1n year 2
Uuhsed in year (4)
At 31 December 2007 1

Financial reinsurance

At 1 January 2007 136

Charge 1n year (33)
At 31 December 2007 101

Deferred tax

At 1 January 2007 170
Charge 1n year n
Ettfect of discounting 4

At 31 December 2007 173

Total at i January 2007 333

Total at 31 December 2007 285

Vacant properties

The Company holds leases for a number of vacant and sub-let properties previously occupied by the
Group Provision has been made for the residual fease commitments and for other outgoings where
significant, after taking 1nto account the exisung and expected sub-tenant arrangements The remaimng
terms of the leases are up to 12 years Assumptions as to whether each leasehold property may be sub-let
or assigned 1n the future have been made The discount rate applied to expected future cash flows 15 5%
(2006 5%)

Mortgage endowment complaints

Provision has been established for the esumated likely cost of redress, including administrative costs
anisimg from the review of the suitability of mortgage endowment policies In addition to the accounung
proviston of £7m (2006 £20m), an actuanal reserve of £9m (2006 £17m) was held in the long-term

business provision at 31 December 2007 1n respect of estimated further endowment complaints

The majority of the morigage endowment redress provisions are expected to be settled i the next (wo
years
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PROVISION FOR OTHER RISKS AND CHARGES (continued)
Review of other sales

Provisions have been established for the estimated likely redress, including admimistration costs, arising
from the review of other sales In addiuon to the accounting provision of £1m (2006 £3m), an actuanal
reserve of £6m (2006 £23m) was held 1n the long-term business provision 1n respect of future estimated
complants

Financial reinsurance

On 16 December 2004, the Company securiised the cash flows expected to emerge from a book ol 1is life
insurance pohicies by entering 1nto a reinsurance contract with Friends Provident Reinsurance Services
Limited (FPRe) The reinsurance agreement provides regulatory capual 1o the Company and enables
funds to be released 1o finance new business growth As a consequence the loag-term business provision
decreased by £375m As future surpluses emerge on the book of hfe msurance policies the amounts due to
FPRe under the reinsurance contract will be repaid  The surplus offset against the provision i 2007 18
£35m (2006 £152m)

The charge 1s reflected in ‘other technical charges, net of remnsurance’

The Company has not provided any guarantee or comnutment tn respect of the reinsurance contracl

OTHER CREDITORS INCLUDING TAXATION AND SOCIAL SECURITY

2007 2006
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Outstanding investment purchases 3 -
Amounts due to Group undertakings 387 420
Other creditors 42 44
432 464
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{(a)

{b)

FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Annual commitments under non-cancelable operating leases for which no provision has been made 1n the
financial statements were as follows

2007 2006
Land and Land and
buldings buildings
£m £m
Operating leases which expire
mn over five years - 14

GUARANTEES
6 875% Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Securities (STICS) 1ssued by Friends Provident plc

On 21 November 2003, Friends Provident plc 1ssued £300m of STICS, which will bear nterest from 21
November 2003 to 20 November 2019 at a rate of 6 875% The STICS have no maturity date but will be
redecmable at the option of the 1ssuer Friends Provident ple on 21 November 2019 and thereafter on the
coupon payment date falling on or nedarest succeswive fifth anniversanes of this date The STICS are
perpetual securiies and are not redeemable at the option of the holder at any time The STICS are
irrevocably guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Company

The guarantee 1s 1ntended to provide holders with nights against the Company n respect of the guaranteed
payments which are as nearly as posstble equivalent to those which they would have had 1if the STICS had
been directly 1ssued preference shares of the Company

This guarantee does not meet the defimtion of a financial guarantee under FRS 26 as the Company 1s able
to defer 1ts obligation to make payments under the guaraniee to holders of STICS for an unlimited period,
and the holders have no right to enforce the obligation on the Company

6 292% Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Securnities (STICS) 1ssued by Friends Provident plc

On 27 June 2005, Friends Provident plc 1ssued £500m of STICS, which will bear interest from 30 June
2005 to 30 June 2015 at a rate of 6 292% The STICS have no matunty date but will be redeemable at the
option of the 1ssuer Friends Provident ple on 1 July 2015 and thereafter on every fifth anniversary of this
date The STICS are perpetual securiies and are not redeemable at the option of the holder at any ttme
The STICS are wrevocably guaranteed on a hmited and subordinated basis by the Company

This guarantee does not meet the defimtion of a financial guarantee under FRS 26 as the Company 1s able

to defer its obligation to make payments under the guarantee to holders of STICS for an unlimited perniod,
and the holders have no right 1o enforce the obligauon on the Company
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31.

FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors are employed by and receive their remuneration from FPMS, a fellow Group undertaking
Included within the management recharges from FPMS for 2007, 1s an allowance for directors’
emoluments tn respect of their services to the Company, details of which are given below This 15 a
proportion of the costs of the directors’ salanes as incurred by the company

2007 2006
£000 £000

All directors
Management salaries and benefits 1n kind 494 452
Amounts recervable under annual bonus schemes 95 185
589 637

As at 31 December 2007 retirement benefits were accring to eleven directors (2006 ten) under a defined
benefit scheme and one director (2006 one) received retirement benefits under an unfunded unapproved
pension arrangement

Highest paid director

The total of salaries, benefits 1n kind, and result-related payments payable to directors includes £124,000
(2006 £116,000) in respect of the highest paid director, of which £ml (2006 £ml} relates to long-term
incentive schemes This is a proportion of the costs incurred by the company 1n respect of the ighest paid
director and not therr full salary Pension contributions to money purchase schemes include £ml (2006
£nl) for the highest paid director The highest paid director 1s a member of a defined benefit pension
scheme, under which the total accrued pension o which such director would be enutled to from the
normal retirement date 1f the director were to retire at the year end was £85,000 (2006 £76,000)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of Friends Provident plc  The results of both the
Company and 1ts subsidiaries are consohdated 1n the results of Fnends Provident plc, the Company’s
ulumate parent and controlling company, whose financial statements are publicly available Accordingly,
the Company 1s exempt from the requirements of FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures, concernmg the
disclosure of transactions with other compames, which quahify as related parties within the Group

Key management which includes their close family and undertakings controlled by them, had various
transactions with the Company during the year Key management consists of all directors and executive
management of the Company

Payments during the year by key management 1n respect of policies and investments 1ssued or managed
by the Company were as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
Penodic payments 63 39
Single payments 10 210
Payments by the Company 24 935

All these transactions were completed on terms, which were identical o those available 1o staff
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FRIENDS PROVIDENT LIFE AND PENSIONS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has made provision for the esumated cost of settling complaints n respect of past sales
(see note 26) Although the provisions are regularly reviewed, the final outcome could be different from
the provisions established as these costs cannot be calculated with certainty and are influenced by external
factors beyond the control of management Such uncertainties include future regulatory actions, media
attenuon and ivestment performance The majority of the uncertamnty relates to endowment mortgages
although a number of other products are being reviewed as an ongoing process It 15 expected that the
majonity of endowment cases requining compensation will be settled in the next two years

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking 15 Friends Provident ple which 1s incorporated 1n the Umited
Kingdom Copies of the Group Annual Report and Accounts of Friends Provident plc can be obtained by
wnting 1o 1ts Secretary at Pixham End, Dorking, Surrey RH4 1QA and can be viewed via its website at
www friendsprovident com
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